

2007 CIVIL/CRIMINAL PENALTIES SUMMARY—ALL PENALTIES PAID IN CALENDAR YEAR 2007—Continued
[1/1/2007–12/31/2007]

Operator name and case No.	Violation and date(s)	Penalty paid and date paid	Regulation(s) violated (30 CFR)
Devon Energy Production Company, L.P., G–2007–017.	An employee’s unsafe and un-workmanlike action resulted in him falling 15’ to the deck below. 16–MAR–2007—16–MAR–2007	\$20,000, 12/11/2007	§ 250.107.
PetroQuest Energy LLC, G–2007–018.	The SCSSV had been rendered inoperable since the isolation valve located at the wellhead was closed. 15–MAR–2007—25–MAR–2007	\$10,000, 9/5/2007	§ 250.803(c).
Apache Corporation, G–2007–019.	There was a failure to maintain an operable drill floor Emergency Shut-Down station with simultaneous well production. 16–APR–2007—16–APR–2007	\$20,000, 9/26/2007	§ 250.406.
Petrobras America Inc., G–2007–020.	During completion operations on the Transocean Off-shore F100 drilling rig, two contract workers were seriously injured when a lifting sub that was being used to lift production tubing backed out of its connection and fell 65’ to the rig floor striking the 2 workers. 19–FEB–2007—19–FEB–2007	\$30,000, 11/6/2007	§ 250.107(a).
Dominion Exploration & Production, Inc., G–2007–024.	After being denied a departure request to produce the H2 well with casing pressure, Dominion pulled the DX plug and produced the well for 279 days. 15–JUN–2006—20–MAR–2007	\$697,500, 12/13/2007	§ 250.107(a).
W&T Offshore, Inc., G–2007–026.	The MMS Inspector found the starter gas for the fire water pump was blocked closed rendering the pump inoperable. 13–MAY–2007—13–MAY–2007	\$35,000, 12/19/2007	§ 250.803(b)(8).
Apache Corporation, G–2007–028.	The MMS Inspector discovered that an additional section of metal plating had been removed from the ladder access opening for the mud pit tank. The removed section extended the opening beyond the three barricaded sides of the ladder access, creating a hazard for personnel. 13–APR –2007 –13–APR–2007	\$12,000, 11/15/2007	CFR 250.107.
Devon Energy Production Co., L.P., G–2007–032.	The LSH on the 1st stage suction scrubber; and the LSH on the 3rd stage suction scrubber were both found in by-pass. 22–JUN–2007—22–JUN–2007 22–JUN–2007—22–JUN–2007	\$15,000, 12/19/2007	§ 250.803(c), § 250.803(c).

Total Penalties Paid: 1/1/07–12/31/07
36 Cases: \$3,106,000

The purpose of publishing the penalties summary is to provide information to the public on violations of special concern in OCS operations and to provide an additional incentive for safe and environmentally sound operations.

Authority: 31 U.S.C. 9701, 43 U.S.C. 1334.

Dated: February 26, 2008.

Chris Oynes,

Associate Director for Offshore Minerals Management.

[FR Doc. E8–6687 Filed 3–31–08; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4310–MR–P

OFFICE OF NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL POLICY

Paperwork Reduction Act; 30-Day Notice

AGENCY: Office of National Drug Control Policy.

The Office of National Drug Control Policy (ONDCP) proposes the collection of information concerning student drug testing. There was one request for the survey instrument from the New York State Office of Alcoholism and Substance Abuse Services, Bureau of Grants Management and Federal Affairs. ONDCP invites interested persons to submit comments to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) regarding any aspect of this proposed effort.

Type of Collection: Survey of State Educational Directors.

Title of Information Collection: Federal Safe and Drug Free Schools State formula grant (Title IV) resources supporting Student Drug Testing Programs in the Nation’s schools.

Frequency: Annually by fiscal year.

Affected Public: Instrumentalities of state, local, and tribal educational entities.

Estimated Burden: Minimal since State Education Agencies have pre-established reporting relationships with Local Education Agencies (LEAs). LEAs receiving funds under Title IV must report on the services and activities supported by these funds.

Send comments to John Kraemer, OMB Desk Officer for ONDCP, New Executive Office Building, Room 10235, Washington, DC 20503. Comments must be received within 30 days. Additional information may be requested by facsimile transmission to (202) 395–5276, attention: Meredith DeFraitres or by e-mail to Meredith_L_DeFraitres@ondcp.eop.gov.

Signed in Washington, DC, on March 23, 2008.

Daniel R. Petersen,

Assistant General Counsel.

[FR Doc. E8–6604 Filed 3–31–08; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 3180–02–P